#### SEASIDE ARTS COUNCIL AND ARTS COUNCIL botillar atus petromercusiani intella montre recom BYLAWS without an identification of the fires weath it is the needs of the constantly being served by the Councilmond and a remains are also

For explore the explored by the appear to the expension of by Superior the explored and the

s incrementary the substitutes and leaft that the freezenance are relative to the edition of

restrictions and informations, that has not long temperatures, and any decreasing of the desputh of consider

union of the board of directors between each amount electing.

## I. Name The creative day of the seaside water Commell agail he executionistic day of the supports the

The name of this organization shall be the Seaside Arts Council.

# II. Structure

The Seaside Arts Council, which is organized for cultural and educational purposes, shall be an unincorporated nonprofit subsidiary organization of the Swansboro Area Development Foundation.

# III. Purpose publicate financial the atmospheric to exist visualization, remote ad out its existing in

The purposes of the Seaside Arts Council shall be to promote, advance, and provide performing arts and visual arts opportunities, appreciation, and education for residents of- and visitors to the Swansboro and Western Carteret County area. at the annual receiving each year, except that apric targe at amountable accept man, or anted

# esection. The officers of that Council should be belonted by the bound of discrete from teneral

The activities of the Seaside Arts Council shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following: omeni k gendarete izerki. Girmidrimaga arrete minoarrete petabla ade il mir d

- A. Appreciation. Organization, provision, and promotion of opportunities for public enjoyment and appreciation of the performing arts (such as music, theatre, and dance) and the visual arts (such painting, drawing, sculpture, photography, filmmaking, and ceramics).
- B. <u>Education</u>. Organization, provision, and promotion of opportunities for adult and youth education regarding the arts. nament tooks of their transferrendants
- C. Support. Support of the arts in a variety of ways, including but not limited to the following:
- 1. Fundraising. Raising funds to support art opportunities, appreciation, and education through event admissions, solicitation of donations, solicitation of memberships, applications for grants, and fundraising events. ausu sad vistasild on limikasila mediri olimba valatuna perilikun
  - 2. Planning. Developing and adopting plans to help focus, direct, and implement the purposes - are early and an information of the control of th

ach excite as one, be implicate to discuss from such mixitioned parties

- 3. Advocacy. Promoting support for the arts, arts education, arts in schools, and the importance of the arts in the culture of the community. get to dispripring his this beautiful affection is securities and in a security and the local contraction of
- 4. Marketing. Publicizing Council programs and activities and other arts opportunities that may be available in the region.
- 5. Patronage. Providing support to persons who are creatively engaged in the performing and visual arts.

6. Research. Undertaking studies, surveys, and other research to determine the arts-related needs of the community being served by the Council.

### V. Membership

The membership of the Seaside Arts Council shall be open to any individual who supports the purpose of the organization and who fulfills any dues requirements and conditions of membership set by the Board of Directors.

### VI. Governance

### A. Board of Directors.

- 1. Authority. The business and activities of the Seaside Arts Council shall be governed by the Board of Directors.
- 2. Composition. The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than seven (7) nor more than twelve (12) members of the Council. The specific number of directors shall be determined at the annual meeting each year, except that up to three additional directors may be added by action of the board of directors between each annual meeting.
- 3. *Election*. The directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Council. Candidates shall include those persons nominated by the Nominating Committee and any additional candidates nominated from the floor. The persons elected shall be those who receive a plurality in relation to the number of positions to be filled. The members of the board of directors, following election, be confirmed by governing board of the Swansboro Area Development Foundation.
- 4. Term. Directors shall serve a two-year term, beginning on the first day of the fiscal year of the Council.
- 5. Vacancies. Vacancies on the board of directors may occur (a) if a director resigns by written notice to the president or (b) if a director is removed by the board of directors, when in the judgment of a board majority, such removal is in the best interests of the Council. The removal of a director must be confirmed by the governing board of the Swansboro Area Development Foundation. Vacancies shall be filled by the board of directors from nominations provided by the Nominating Committee, and persons appointed to vacancies shall serve for the unexpired term of their predecessor.
- 6. Meetings. Regular meetings of the board of directors shall be held at least quarterly at a time and place selected by the board. Meetings may be held more often (such as monthly) at the discretion of the board. Special meetings may be called by the president or by any three directors. Notice of special meetings shall be given to all directors, stating the purpose of the meeting, at least three days prior to the meeting.

- 7. Quorums and Actions. A majority of the board of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and a vote of a majority present and voting shall be sufficient to approve actions of the board.
- 8. Procedures. The conduct of business shall be governed by Suggested Rules of Procedure for Small Governing Boards, by Fleming Bell, University of North Carolina School of Government, latest edition.
- 9. Committees. The board of directors may establish such standing or special committees as it considers necessary to conduct and facilitate the business and mission of the Council, including the purpose, size, and duties of such committees. All committees shall report regularly to the board of directors.
- 10. Compensation. No director or officer shall receive any compensation, other than the reimbursement of expenses, for his or her services, and no funds of the Council shall inure to the benefit of any director or officer.
- B. <u>Officers</u>. The officers of the Seaside Arts Council shall be a president, a vice president, a secretary, and a treasurer.
  - 1. *Election*. The officers of the Council shall be elected by the board of directors from among the membership of the board. The election shall take place at the first meeting of the board following the annual meeting (which meeting may, if desired, take place immediately following the annual meeting). Officers shall serve a two-year term of office.
  - 2. Vacancies. Vacancies among the officers may occur (a) if an officer resigns by written notice to the board of directors or (b) if an officer is removed by the board of directors, when in the judgment of a board majority, such removal is in the best interests of the Council. Vacancies shall be filled by the board of directors, and persons appointed to vacancies shall serve for the unexpired term of their predecessor.
  - 3. *Duties*. The duties of the officers of the Council shall be as described below and those usual and customary to such offices.
    - a. President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the board of directors and the executive committee, shall be an ex-officio member of all committees, shall appoint and remove the members of standing and special committees, and shall execute such written documents and instruments as may be authorized by the board of directors. The president shall also perform such duties as may be incident to the office or such additional duties as may be assigned by the board of directors or executive committee.
    - b. Vice President. The vice president shall exercise the authority and functions of the president in the absence or inability of the president.
    - c. Secretary. The secretary shall keep the minutes of the board of directors and the executive committee, shall have custody of official records and documents of the Council, shall execute (with the president) written documents and instruments authorized

by the board of directors, and shall perform any additional duties as may be assigned by the board of directors or executive committee.

- d. Treasurer. The treasurer shall have the following duties and responsibilities:
  - (1) The treasurer shall have charge of all monies, bills, and financial instruments of the
  - (2) The treasurer shall monitor and make deposits of all monies and other valuables to the credit of the Council in such depositories authorized by the board of directors;
  - (3) The treasurer shall keep the accounts of the Council, shall be responsible for the payment of bills, shall render financial reports to the board of directors at least quarterly, and shall, at the expiration of office, transmit all property, accounting records, and funds to the incoming treasurer.
- C. Executive Committee. The executive committee shall consist of the officers of the Council. The executive committee shall, subject to any limits imposed by the board of directors, conduct any necessary business of the Council between meetings of the board of directors and shall report such actions at the next board meeting. The executive committee shall have such additional powers, duties, and responsibilities as may be delegated by the board of directors.
- r diesija ir 12. og 2004. V101 D. Nominating Committee. The nominating committee be appointed by the board of directors and shall consist of three arts council members, at least one of whom shall not be a member of the board of directors.

#### VII. Finance

- a to an or provide the second of A. Books and Records. The Council shall keep correct and complete accounting records. All records shall be maintained for a minimum of seven years.
- B. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year shall be January 1 through December 31.
- C. Contracts. The board of directors may authorize any officer or officers to enter into any contract or to execute and deliver any instrument on behalf of the Council. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
- the transfer of the first of the state of th D. Financial Obligations. No debt obligations shall be entered on behalf of the Council unless authorized by a resolution of the board of directors.
- The state of the s E. Checks and Drafts. All checks, drafts, and other orders of payment of money issued in the name of the Council shall be signed by such officer or officers as may be authorized by the board of directors.
- Section of the sectio F. Depositories. All funds collected on behalf of the Council shall be expeditiously deposited to the credit of the Council in such depositories as designated by the board of directors.
- . The same profession of the same of the s G. Audits. The financial records of the Council shall be annually reviewed through a procedure selected by the board of directors, which may include review by an accounting professional. review by an audit committee, or review by another appropriate method. The results of the review shall be reported to the board of directors. The financial records of the Council may

also be reviewed from time to time by the Swansboro Area Development Foundation, so long as the Council remains its subsidiary.

#### VIII. Other Provisions

The second of the Hill of the

A. <u>Amendments</u>. Provided that a quorum exists, these Bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the members present at any regular meeting of the board of directors, provided that at least twenty-five days notice, in writing, has been given of intention to amend the Bylaws at such meeting and the proposed Bylaw change(s) is provided with such notice.

and the control of the state of the companies of the state of the control of the state of the st

Adopted in first annual meeting, February 11, 2010.

LEPER PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY

Corporations, principlical, and processored of expendencial to a collecto a consequence of the power was compared with a consequence, down and the contraction of the process of the power of the consequence of the constant power of the constant power.

the sign of the case of the article of the companies of the case o

e i sala se se se se proposición el presenta de cuente mentenera de la proposición de la companya de la del de La proposición de la proposición de la distribución de la desenva de la del desenva de la companya de la compa

de la la companya de la co

Section 1. The content of president in that engineering adjoint the product of the